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351 Powers Avenue RFP Addendum 
RFP Issue Date: August 18, 2022 

Pre-submission Conference Date: September 13, 2022 
Addendum 1 Issue Date: October 3, 2022 

 

Contents of the Addendum 

A. Questions and Answers — Enclosed are questions and answers that were asked at the pre-
submission conference on September 13, 2022, as well as questions sent to the RFP email 
address through September 23, 2022. 

B. Corrections to the RFP — Corrected language is provided  
C. Form L — Updated Form L 
D. Contact Information – Contact information is provided for those individuals who registered for 

the pre-submission conference and indicated their willingness to share their contact 
information. 
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A. Questions and Answers  
 

General 
1. Will you be sending the slides after the meeting to all attendees? 

The slides are posted on the 351 Powers Avenue RFP website and can be found here. 
 

2. Will the Zoom attendee list be shared? 
The list of those who opted to share their contact information can be found in Section D of this 
addendum.  
 

3. Will Q&A be shared in writing in an addendum? 
Yes, this addendum shows the questions and answers from the pre-submission conference as 
well as email questions received through September 23rd. Additional questions that come in 
through email will also be posted in a later addendum.   
 

4. The list of threshold items in the presentation is much shorter than what’s in the RFP. Can you 
confirm what are threshold items versus competitive items?  
The RFP includes a section that outlines the threshold versus competitive criteria, which can be 
found in Section VI: Submission Requirements and Competitive Preferences starting on page 20 
of the RFP.  
 

5. When does HPD plan on designating this site? 
While in the past HPD has endeavored to designate winning proposals within five to eight 
months of the submission deadline, current pipeline and capacity constraints have necessitated 
longer review periods. Currently, HPD hopes to designate the Proposal within eight months of 
the submission deadline. However, HPD will share any updates to the timeline as review 
progresses. 
 

6. What type of housing are you looking for here?  
HPD requires 100% affordable housing, in compliance with HPD program term sheets, design 
guidelines, and requirements identified in the RFP. Additional goals are identified in the RFP as 
well as in the Community Visioning Report.  
 

Design 
7. Are we allowed to propose any rezoning? A section of the RFP suggested no rezoning, but 

another section suggested a ULURP.  
ULURP is required for the UDAAP and disposition of City-owned property. HPD does not 
anticipate a rezoning of the Site, but Respondents may propose designs that would necessitate 
mechanisms to utilize this site’s available FAR.  
 

8. Are there exact lot dimensions? Approximately 175' was mentioned. 
The lot has approximately 175 feet of frontage, and approximately 99 feet of the depth.  
 

9. If ULURP is anticipated, can Proposals account for more than 80 units? 
Please see question 7 regarding the purpose of the required ULURP. The RFP states that the 
target number of units expected ranges from 50-80; however, Respondents may propose more 

https://www1.nyc.gov/site/hpd/services-and-information/351-powers-avenue-rfp.page
https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/hpd/downloads/pdfs/services/351-powers-pre-submission-conference.pdf
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units. HPD will evaluate Proposals based on how well the entire Proposal meets the various 
goals stated in the RFP.  
 

10. What level of detail do you expect in the architectural designs during this procurement stage? 
Plans and drawings are to be at a concept design level. Respondents should refer to 
requirements in Tab M: Architectural and Urban Design Plans (starting on page 34 of the RFP) 
for more details.  
 

11. Can we utilize a Board of Standards and Appeals (BSA) waiver if there are other restrictions 
(not the underlying zoning) restricting the unit count? 
Respondents may propose designs that would necessitate mechanisms to utilize the Site’s 
available FAR. Please make sure to discuss the design strategy, including any waivers as part of 
Tab L: Design Narrative. 
 

12. Can we propose a combination of efficiency and studio units? 
Per HPD design guidelines, buildings must have either efficiency or studio units, not a 
combination of the two.  
 

13. It was mentioned that a portion of the site will be split and retained, with its FAR, for the DOE. 
Is the referenced 175' x 99' lot size fully available for the development under this RFP? 
The portion of the lot that is 175 feet by 99 feet is considered the Site. Respondents should use 
only the FAR available from the Site, and not additional FAR that could be generated from the 
remainder of the lot (the playground and school building).  
 

14. What are accessibility requirements? Do all the units have to follow Uniform Federal 
Accessibility Standards (UFAS)? 
Refer to HPD Design Guidelines and HPD Accessibility Guidelines which specifically address the 
accessibility requirements of HPD projects.  
 

15. Will HPD assist with the tax lot split? 
HPD will sign off on the tax lot split, but the Development Team will complete and submit the 
paperwork. 
 

16. Can MIH zoning be considered? 
The Site is not within a Mandatory Inclusionary Housing (MIH) area, and a rezoning that would 
trigger MIH is not anticipated for the Site.  
 

17. Given that you do not want us to use school floor area, do you want us to create two separate 
zoning lots between the school and Site? 
At this time, HPD’s preference would be to create two separate zoning lots. However, 
Respondents should feel free to propose a preferred alternative, which should be described in 
the Tab L: Design Narrative.   
 

18. If you create two separate zoning lots, a parking garage for offsite use is not permitted by 
zoning. How do you want us to deal with this? 
If needed, HPD will work with the designated Development Team to ensure any needed 
approvals are in place.  
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As per section 25-53 of the zoning resolution, off-street parking spaces may be provided on a 
separate zoning lot that is within 200 feet of the zoning lot that requires the parking: 
 
In the districts indicated (R5 R6 R7 R8 R9 R10), all permitted or required off-street parking 
spaces accessory to permitted non-residential uses may be provided on a zoning lot other than 
the same zoning lot as such uses, but within the same district or an adjoining district other than 
an Rl, R2, R3 or R4 District provided that in such instances all such spaces located in a Residence 
District shall be not further than 200 feet from the nearest boundary of the zoning lot containing 
such uses, and all such spaces located in a Commercial District or Manufacturing District shall be 
not further than 600 feet from the nearest boundary of such zoning lot, and provided further 
that the Commissioner of Buildings determines that: 

(a)        there is no way to arrange such spaces on the same zoning lot as such uses; and 
(b)        such spaces are so located as to draw a minimum of vehicular traffic to and 
through streets having predominantly residential frontages. 

 
Such parking spaces shall conform to all additional regulations promulgated by the 
Commissioner of Buildings to minimize adverse effects on the character of surrounding areas. 
 

19. If we provide a parking garage, we may have to count it towards FAR, and in either case may 
not be able to use all the FAR within the zoning envelope. How should we deal with this? 
Ground floor parking will likely not count as FAR. If Respondents find they are not able to use 
the FAR within the zoning envelope, they should explain their design and any waivers or 
mechanisms required to utilize the Site’s available FAR. HPD will evaluate Respondents’ 
programs and designs and their ability to meet the development goals outlined in the RFP. 

 
20. What are the mechanisms referred to that might be necessary to utilize the site's as-of-right 

FAR: "No rezoning is anticipated but Respondents may propose designs that would 
necessitate mechanisms to utilize this site’s available FAR" (RFP page 12). 
Respondents may propose mechanisms such as waivers to utilize the Site’s available FAR. 
Anything proposed should be discussed in the design strategy as part of Tab L: Design Narrative. 
 

21. Since the Site would need to go through a ULURP process anyway, would it be fair to propose 
a zoning variance or zoning change to be a part of the ULURP process in order to maximize the 
utilization of the site? 
No zoning changes should be proposed. If proposing a variance, please discuss the variance and 
rationale as part of Tab L: Design Narrative. 

 
Finance 

22. Can a bank statement suffice for the asset statements or do you need a balance sheet?  
Respondents may either submit audited financial statements or Form I Asset Statements. 
 

23. Given that the community is interested in a significant community facility, what will HPD be 
looking for in terms of financing terms or contracts-in-place for the community facility? 
Per the RFP, nonresidential income and equity assumptions must be described in detail and 
include information about funding sources and/or rental comparables; if community facility 
spaces are included, they must generate enough rental income or the Development Team must 
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provide equity to support all associated development costs, inclusive of hard and soft costs. The 
RFP doesn’t require Letters of Interest (LOIs); however, HPD will look for a robust financing plan. 
Respondents are encouraged to include commitment letters from particular tenants and a 
financing plan for construction of core and shell and fit out as applicable.  

 
24. Should we assume capital subsidy on top of the housing subsidy for the extra costs associated 

with the required parking? What should we do if we need additional subsidy for parking?  
Teams should find ways to minimize any funding gap, and should show the cost and the gap due 
to parking. HPD is willing to include parking hard costs in the development budget.  

 
Development Team 

25. There are portions of the RFP that suggest the Development Team would have to have 
experience developing 50 units. Do we need to have developed 50 units as the primary on 
that deal, or do joint venture (JV) partnerships count towards satisfying the threshold criteria?  
The threshold requirement will be met as long as one Principal from the joint venture can 
demonstrate the required experience.  
 

26. Please advise if the 50-unit threshold minimum can be achieved using more than 1 entity on 
the development team? 
The 50-unit threshold minimum can be achieved when at least one Principal has, as Principal, 
successfully completed new construction or substantial rehabilitation of at least one project of 
at least fifty (50) residential units within the past seven (7) years. The Principal may have 
achieved this experience as Principal of another entity.  
 

27. Can we use an in-progress HPD project towards the threshold count? 
Only completed projects will count towards meeting the above threshold.  
 

28. Is the Development Team responsible for the ULURP or will HPD assist?  
HPD will be the lead applicant on the ULURP and will work closely with the Development Team 
through the process. The Development Team is expected to assist with preparing the supporting 
documentation for the application, and to play a key role in preparing public facing 
presentations and leading presentations throughout the process. 
 

29. Is an engineer needed as part of the response team? Or does the Architect satisfy this 
requirement? 
Per the RFP, Respondents should identify a Development Team that includes an engineer. Please 

 refer to the RFP for more details regarding the Development Team.  
 

30. On Page 20 of the RFP, it says at a minimum the team should include a construction manager. 
It is more typical for a project to be built by a GC. Does a GC satisfy this requirement?  
A General Contractor will satisfy this requirement.  
 

31. Can a developer submit a team without a GC identified as long as a construction manager is 
identified?  This would assume the Project would then be competitively bid out for a GC. 
If an involved Construction Manager or GC is identified, HPD will consider the threshold 
requirement met. Please make sure to describe the roles of each entity of the Development 
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Team during construction and throughout the life of the Project as part of Tab D: Developer 
Respondent Description. 

 
32. Is it allowed for the same General Contractor to participate as part of multiple RFP teams 

(with different developers) as long as they do not have an equity stake in the partnership?   
Members of a Development Team may be a part of more than one Proposal as long as they do 
not have an ownership stake in more than one Submission.   
 

33. Will HPD allow the GC to be part of two development teams as 1) co-developer/GC with an 
ownership stake and 2) GC with no ownership stake? 
The GC would be able to participate in multiple Proposals as long as they have an ownership 
stake in only one Submission. 
 
 

Parking 
34. How many DOE parking spaces are required? 

Competitive Proposals will provide parking to replace the existing number of parking spaces 
utilized without compromising the residential program. The current use estimate is up to 50 cars 
per day, and the number of proposed parking spaces should not go below 30.  
 

35. Are we permitted to charge rent on the parking spaces? 
The RFP allows for fees not to exceed market rate parking fees in the area. Currently DOE staff 
do not pay for parking. HPD would like to see parking remain as affordable as possible to DOE 
staff while still achieving a financially feasible project.  

 
Nearby Developments 

36. Is there proposed development for the adjacent vacant land owned by Women in Need 
(WIN)? Is WIN able to submit a response to this RFP?  
Across the street from the Site is City-owned property with an existing shelter building and 
vacant land. The currently undeveloped part of the property will be used to develop a new 
shelter building, and the existing shelter building will then be demolished and replaced by a new 
building financed by HPD’s Supportive Housing Loan Program (SHLP).  

 
The RFP is open to all qualified developers, and WIN is welcome to submit a response. 
 

37. Is there a development timeline for the WIN buildings? 
The construction closing for the shelter building is expected by the end of 2022. Demolition of 
the old shelter building and construction for the new supportive housing building will begin 
when the new shelter building is completed and occupied.  
 

38. What is the status of the new shelter building? Who is developing it? Who is developing the 
current shelter site? 
WIN will develop the new shelter on that site. WIN currently operates the existing shelter 
building. 
 

39. Has WIN released any details for a community facility space or other community amenities? 
HPD does not have details at the moment. 
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Climate Resiliency Design Guidelines and Sustainability Standards  

40. Do Respondents need to meet with the CRDG technical team prior to submission? Or after 
selection? Are resources available now or after designation? 
Teams are not required to meet with the CRDG technical team prior to submission. The CRDG is 
a public document and a resource within itself. Resources will be available once a Development 
Team has been designated; for example, the CRDG consultant team can work with the 
Development Team to further develop resiliency strategies.  
 

41. How if at all does the CRDG contradict the existing HPD Design Guidelines? 
The CRDG is not meant to contradict the HPD Design Guidelines. The CRDG goes above and 
beyond HPD standards and building codes. HPD is asking Respondents to enhance resiliency by 
incorporating forward-looking data into the Project’s design. 
 

42. Beyond the resiliency guidelines, are there any specific sustainability targets, e.g., LEED 
certification? 
All HPD projects are required to meet, at minimum, LEED v4 Gold or Platinum or the NYC 
Overlay of Enterprise Green Communities Criteria. Development Teams are also encouraged to 
consider additional green building standards, e.g.  Passive House Institute US or Passive Housing 
International certification. Per the RFP, HPD is looking for enhanced sustainability especially 
where it intersects with the CRDG. Sustainability and Resiliency are a competitive criterion in 
this RFP, and competitive Proposals will go above and beyond what is already required. 
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B. Corrections to the RFP 
 

1. Page 20, Participation of M/WBE or Eligible Non-Profit 
 
Referenced definition of M/WBE and Eligible Non-Profit are: 
 
Eligible Non-Profit Definition 
A corporation formed under the New York Not-for-Profit Corporation Law that is not controlled 
by or under common control with one or more for-profit entities on the Development Team (or 
any owner, principal, employee, or affiliate of any such entity). 
 
M/WBE Definition  
An entity that has been certified as a Minority and/or Women-Owned Business Enterprise by a 
governmental or quasi-governmental entity acceptable to HPD. Approved certifying entities 
include SBS, Empire State Development, the State of New Jersey Department of the Treasury, 
the Port Authority of New York & New Jersey, or any other verifiable governmental or quasi-
governmental certifying body. 
 
 

2. Page 28, Development Team Experience and Capacity 
Tab D – Developer Respondent Description  
 
Please disregard the struck language and follow direction in the corrected language: 

 
Organizational Structure. Chart or diagram of structure of partnership or joint venture, including 
percentages of ownership and investment, with a brief description of the type of entity or joint-
venture and the roles and responsibilities of each party. 
 

 
(Disregard) o M/WBE Ownership Interest – Respondents must submit a certificate from 
a principal or other authorized officer of the M/WBE that is to participate in the 
ownership of the Project. This certificate must confirm that the M/WBE will hold at least 
51% of the managing ownership interest in the Project and will be entitled to receive a 
commensurate interest in the totality of the economic benefits of the Project (net of 
LIHTC limited partner interests, if any), including, but not limited to, all available cash 
flows, paid and deferred developer fees, and sale and refinancing proceeds. The 
certificate must also include a detailed explanation of the proposed ownership interest 
of the participating M/WBE in the Project, including, but not limited to, its 
commensurate interest in the economic benefits of the Project.  
 
(Corrected) M/WBE or Eligible Non-Profit Ownership Interest – Respondents must 
submit a certificate from a principal or other authorized officer of the M/WBE or Eligible 
Non-Profit that is to participate in the ownership of the Project. This certificate must 
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confirm that the M/WBE or Eligible Non-Profit, as the case may be, will hold at least 25% 
of the managing ownership interest in the Project and will be entitled to receive a 
commensurate interest in the totality of the economic benefits of the Project (net of 
LIHTC limited partner interests, if any), including, but not limited to, all available cash 
flows, paid and deferred developer fees, and sale and refinancing proceeds. The 
certificate must also include a detailed explanation of the proposed ownership interest 
of the participating M/WBE or Eligible Non-Profit in the Project, including, but not 
limited to, its commensurate interest in the economic benefits of the Project. 

 
 

3. Page 36, Section VIII. DEVELOPER OBLIGATION 
 
Please disregard the struck language and follow direction in the corrected language:  

 
A. Development Team and Project Management  

The Developer will be responsible for assembling a Development Team with the necessary 
expertise, experience, and capacity to develop and manage the proposed Project, such as 
expertise in affordable housing development and finance, marketing and property management 
(residential and commercial, if applicable), design and construction, social service provision, and 
community development.  
 
(Disregard) At or prior to closing, HPD will require satisfactory evidence that the appropriate 
organizational documents of the owners of the Project evidence the ownership interest of the 
M/WBE consistent with the requirements of this RFP and the Respondent’s proposal. Such 
evidence will include, but not be limited to, representations by the Project’s owners and an 
opinion of counsel or other knowledgeable professional. The HPD regulatory agreement for the 
Project will require the owner to maintain the required ownership interest of the M/WBE during 
the term of Project financing provided by HPD, except as may be approved in writing by HPD in 
the case of foreclosure, misconduct, certain voluntary sales, or other circumstances.  
 
(Corrected) At or prior to closing, HPD will require satisfactory evidence that the appropriate 
organizational documents of the owners of the Project evidence the ownership interest of the 
M/WBE or Eligible Non-Profit consistent with the requirements of this RFP and the Respondent’s 
proposal. Such evidence will include, but not be limited to, representations by the Project’s 
owners and an opinion of counsel or other knowledgeable professional. The HPD regulatory 
agreement for the Project will require the owner to maintain the required ownership interest of 
the M/WBE or Eligible Non-Profit during the term of Project financing provided by HPD, except 
as may be approved in writing by HPD in the case of foreclosure, misconduct, certain voluntary 
sales, or other circumstances. 
 
The Developer is responsible for a professional and disciplined project management approach to 
the public/private partnership in connection with this Submission with the objective of ensuring 
transparent information, project governance, smooth negotiations and communications, as well 
as risk management and quality control.  
 
(Disregard) Interim use(s) proposed by the selected Respondent may be permitted prior to 
commencing construction. Such uses would be further discussed and considered by HPD after 
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selection. Interim use(s) will not be evaluated or considered in the selection of a Project as 
described under this RFP (see Section V Selection Process). HPD anticipates that a Developer will 
be the signatory on any legal agreements for any such proposed interim use(s).  
 
The Developer is responsible for arranging timely commencement and completion of the Project 
and will be held accountable for the schedules outlined in the Submission and agreed upon with 
HPD. The Developer will be required to submit ongoing status reports regarding Project 
development, financing, budget, schedule, marketing, leasing, and management. In addition, 
the Developer will be responsible for working with the City to coordinate planning and 
construction schedule.  
 
The Development Team is responsible for activities typically associated with development, 
including, but not limited to, the design, finance, construction, marketing and leasing (and/or 
selling), and management of the completed residential units and commercial spaces, if 
applicable. 
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C. Updates to Form L  
Corrected hyperlink in RESILIENCY section:  
 
Describe key strategies the project is incorporating to address applicable climate risks and note 
where in the project’s documents further details can be found. Use the (corrected hyperlink) 
NYC Climate Resiliency Design Guidelines.  
  

https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/sustainability/downloads/pdf/publications/CRDG-4-1-May-2022.pdf#:%7E:text=NYC%20Mayor%E2%80%99s%20Office%20of%20Climate%20and%20Environmental%20Justice,can%20be%20incorporated%20into%20standard%20project%20delivery%20frameworks.
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D. Contact Information for Pre-Submission Conference RSVPs 
 

Org Name Name Email 

May we 
share your 
contact 
information? 

Acacia Network Real Estate Development 
(ARED) / Promesa HDFC Lorraine Coleman lcoleman@basicsinc.org Yes 
Alexander Gorlin Architects Quncie Williams qwilliams@gorlinarchitects.com Yes 
Alexander Gorlin Architects Justine Buchanan justine@gorlinarchitects.com Yes 
All Renovation Construction LLC Allan Suarez allan@allrenovations.com Yes 
APEX BUILDING COMPANY INC. Kuza A Woodard kwoodard71@gmail.com Yes 
Architecture in Formation Paulo Flores paulo@aifny.com Yes 
Architecture in Formation (AiF) Emily Ruopp emily@aifny.com Yes 
Architecture in Formation (AiF) Matthew Bremer matt@aifny.com Yes 
arketekcher Michael Bevivino michael@arketekcher.com Yes 
Arketekcher Architecture DPC Madeline Clappin madeline@arketekcher.com Yes 
Armand Corporation Shamsell Abdill Sabdill@armandcorp.com Yes 
ASSET Management Consulting Hope Lawery hope@bisonrattler.com Yes 
Aufgang Architects Shiva Ghomi shiva@aufgang.com Yes 
B.A.K CONSTRUCTION INC Benjamin Mensah Bmensah@bakconstructioninc.com Yes 
Baobab Holdings Quintin Farrell quintin@baobabHLD.com Yes 
Beacon Communities LLC Jennifer Steinberg jensteinberg@gmail.com Yes 
BFC Partners Robert Sanna rsanna@bfcnyc.com Yes 
Bjarke Ingels Group (BIG) Stephen Pinto stephen@big.dk Yes 
BKSK Architects Elizabeth Candela ecandela@bksk.com Yes 
Bright Power Samuel Biele-Fisher sfisher@brightpower.com Yes 
Brightcore Energy Joshua Soble josh.soble@brightcoreenergy.com Yes 
Bronx Pro Group Rob Poole rpoole@bronxprogroup.com Yes 
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BronxWorks Shali Sharma vsharma@bronxworks.org Yes 
Camber Property Group Joanna Kandel jkandel@camberpg.com Yes 
Cameron Engineering &amp; Associates Michael Keane mkeane@cameronengineering.com Yes 
Class One Construction Ltd Jonathan Lopez jonathanclass1@gmail.com Yes 
Contract Dynamics LLC Dan Pooran dpinvestors321@gmail.com Yes 
CORE CONSULTANTS NYC LLC Shlomo Banbahji Sbanbahji@coreconsultantsnyc.com Yes 
Cornell Pace Inc. Ethan Rugel Erugel@cornellpace.com Yes 
Curtis + Ginsberg Architects Zachary Weimer zweimer@cplusga.com Yes 
Curtis + Ginsberg Architects Robert Crabtree rcrabtree@cplusga.com Yes 
Curtis + Ginsberg Architects LLP Mark Ginsberg mark@cplusga.com Yes 
Dantes Partners New York Desiree Thomas desiree@dantespartners.com Yes 
david cunningham architecture planning 
pllc david cunningham david@dcapny.com Yes 
Development Consultant Victoria Gousse goussey@gmail.com Yes 
Entuitive Dave Douglas dave.douglas@entuitive.com Yes 
Exact Capital Group Jack Heaney jheaney@exactcapital.com Yes 
EXR REALTY felix Adenihun felix.adenihun@exprealty.com Yes 
Future Expansion Architects Deirdre McDermott dmmcdermott@future-expansion.com Yes 
Gerner Kronick + Valcarcel, Architects, DPC Lauren Paganucci lpaganucci@gkvarchitects.com Yes 
GNY LECET Nadja Barlera nbarlera@gnylecet.org Yes 
Green Jay Ltd Eric Wynn Wgreenjayltd@gmail.com Yes 
Habitat NYC and Westchester Juliana Bernal Jbernal@habitatnycwc.org Yes 
HANAC INC Paola Duran pduran@hanac.org Yes 
HANAC, Inc. Silas Leavitt sleavitt@hanac.org Yes 
HANAC, Inc. Paola Duran pduran@HANAC.org Yes 
HANAC, Inc. Stacy Bliagos sbliagos@hanac.org Yes 
Helpern Architects David Helpern d.helpern@helpern.com Yes 
Hill West Michael Stevick MSTEVICK@HILLWEST.COM Yes 
Hudson Housing Capital Blanca Ramirez blanca.ramirez@hudsonhousing.com Yes 
IMC Architecture DPC Dominick Casale Dcasale@imcarch.com Yes 
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IMU GLOBAL INC. DEREK RISBROOK IMUGLOBALCO@GMAIL.COM Yes 
In Progress Johny Castelli JohnyCastelli@gmail.com Yes 
Infinite Horizons Randall Powell rpowell@infinitehorizonsredc.com Yes 
Innovative Property Management &amp; 
Dev., Inc Miriam  Rodriguez ipmdevelopment@aol.com Yes 
JPB Holdings, LLC Phil Britton pbritton@jpbholdings.com Yes 
K&amp;R Preservation Samuel Richman samrichman@krpreservation.com Yes 
Karoff Consulting Lorinda Karoff lkaroff@karoffconsulting.com Yes 
Kasirer Charlie Samboy Samboy@kasirer.nyc Yes 
Lakshmi Management LTD Wendy Hewlett lakshmimgmt@aol.com Yes 
LANGAN Atena Vladu avladu@langan.com Yes 
Lantern Organization Daniel Kent dkent@lanternhousing.org Yes 
Lemle &amp; Wolff Companies Melonie Diaz mdiaz@lemlewolff.com Yes 
Lemle &amp; Wolff Development Jason Rust` jrust@lemlewolff.com Yes 
Lemor Development Group Adam Ghazzawi adam@lemordev.com Yes 
Lemor Development Group William Budd william@lemordev.com Yes 
MA Thomas Lewis tl@ma.com Yes 
Marin Architects PC Lynda Hayward lhayward@marinarchitects.com Yes 
MBD Community Housing Corp. Derrick Lovett DLovett@mbdhousing.org Yes 
MBT Development Advisors LLC Ralph Declet rd@mbtadvisorygroup.com Yes 
Meltzer Mandl Architects P.C. Eli Meltzer eli@meltzermandlpc.com Yes 
MHANY Management Inc Nick Simmons nsimmons@mutualhousingny.org Yes 
MHANY Management Inc. Maya Ephrem mephrem@mutualhousingny.org Yes 
Morris Adjmi Architects Angela De Riggi Ad@ma.com Yes 
Morris Adjmi Architects Samiera Muhammed sm@ma.com Yes 
Morris Adjmi Architects Lauren Kim lk@ma.com Yes 
Morris Adjmi Architects Angela De Riggi ad@ma.com Yes 
N/a Carl James Cfjames10475@gmail.com Yes 
NCV Capital Partners Jonathan Torres jonathan@ncvcapital.com Yes 
Nehemiah HDFC Arshad Bacchus abacchus@nehemiahrising.com Yes 
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New Destiny Housing Corporation Joan Beck jbeck@newdestinyhousing.org Yes 
OBI CHI SG LLC Deborah Collingwood Info@greenlynyc.com Yes 
O'Connor Capital Partners Brett Buehrer bbuehrer@oconnorcp.com Yes 
OCV Architects Jack Coogan Jcoogan@ocvarch.com Yes 
Procida Construction Corp Stephane Hyacinthe shyacinthe@procidaconstructioncorp.com Yes 
Reside Affordable Martin Joseph malky@resideaffordable.org Yes 
Reyes Victor p.r.vreyes@gmail.com Yes 
RKTB Architects, P.C. Luanne Konopko lkonopko@rktb.com Yes 
Robert Defalco Realty DEREK RISBROOK Drealtyking@gmail.com Yes 
Rockabill Development, LLC Niall Murray nmurray@rockabill.com Yes 
Rodriguez moreta Gabriela Gabriela4@live.com Yes 
Ronnette Riley Architect Jennifer Greene jg@ronnetteriley.com Yes 
Ronnette Riley Architect Ronnette Riley rr@ronnetteriley.com Yes 
Ronnette Riley Architect Brynnemarie Lanciotti BL@ronnetteriley.com Yes 
Sasco Constuction Service Saira Bhutta Info@sascogc.com Yes 
Services for the UnderServed, Inc. Lauren LaMack llamack@sus.org Yes 
Shakespeare Gordon Vlado Architects Nicole Vlado nicole@sgvarch.com Yes 
Sisters of Charity Housing Development 
Corporation Matthew Janeczko mjaneczko@schousingny.org Yes 
Skyrise General Construction Inc. Deuterium Danny Dzafa Danny@skyrise.nyc Yes 
SLM Architecture Humairah Syed hsyed@thinkslm.com Yes 
Smartwarter LLC Dr. Irvinia Moody M.D./PhD/JD/MBA irvinia.moody@gmail.com Yes 
The Briarwood Organization, LLC Ira Brown ibrown@briarwoodorg.com Yes 
The Community Builders Sharon Lewis sharon.lewis@tcbinc.org Yes 
The Community Builders Eric Perez eric.perez@tcbinc.org Yes 
The Hudson Companies Inc Aaron Koffman Akofdman@hudsoninc.com Yes 
The NHP Foundation Polina Bakhteiarov pbakhteiarov@nhpfoundation.org Yes 
True Development New York LLC Shira Gidding Shaul shira.gidding@gmail.com Yes 
Turner &amp; Townsend Daniel Russo danny.russo@turntown.com Yes 
Type A Projects LLC Jill Crawford crawford@typeaprojects.com Yes 
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UpGrades Security Solutions DONNELL J SLAY dslay@upgradesecuritysolutions.com Yes 
Urban Architectural Initiatives Akiko Kyei-Aboagye ak@uai-ny.com Yes 
Urban Architectural Initiatives, RA, PC Michael Tod Smith msmith@uai-ny.com Yes 
Urban Builders Collaborative LLC Nexida Mejia nmejia@lettire.com Yes 
Urban Builders Collaborative, LLC Jordanna Lacoste-Tichner jlacoste@lettire.com Yes 
Urban Ecospaces, Inc. Karina kchiesa@urbanecospaces.com Yes 
Urban Ecospaces, Inc. Everett Perry evperry@urbanecospaces.com Yes 
Urban Ecospaces, Inc. Tamia Perry info@urbanecospaces.com Yes 
Vertical Community Development Leon Hovsepian Leon@VerticalCD.com Yes 
Volunteers of America-GNY Sandra Marquez smarquez@voa-gny.org Yes 
WellLife Network Karen Gorman karen.gorman@welllifenetwork.org Yes 
West Side Federation for Senior and 
Supportive Housing, Inc. Nicole Marrocco nmarrocco@wsfssh.org Yes 
Westhab Dwan Stark dwan.stark@westhab.org Yes 
WHEDco Gemma Duffee gduffee@whedco.org Yes 
Wine Realty Israel Weinstock aweinstock11206@gmail.com Yes 
WSFSSH Stephanie Green sgreen@wsfssh.org Yes 
WSFSSH WSFSSH Development@wsfssh.org Yes 
Xenolith Partners LLC Andrea Kretchmer andrea@xenolithpartners.com Yes 
Ysrael A. Seinuk PC Samantha Donnelly sdonnelly@yaseinuk.com Yes 

 

 


